

San Francisco Department of Public Health
Barbara A Garcia, MPA
Director of Health
Tomás J. Aragón, MD, DrPH
Health Officer

Communicable Disease Control & Prevention

sfdph.org/cdcp

Tel (415) 554-2830 Fax (415) 554-2848

HEALTH ADVISORY: ZIKA VIRUS

JANUARY 22, 2016

The San Francisco Dept. of Public Health (SFDPH) provides this guidance based on current information. Recommendations may change, and SF recommendations may differ from those issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the California Department of Public Health (CDPH).

SITUATIONAL UPDATE

Zika is a mosquito-borne virus that causes mild illness with fever, rash, joint pain, and conjunctivitis in approximately 20% of those who become infected. Outbreaks have occurred in locations in Africa, Southeast Asia, the Pacific Islands, and the Americas. Cases in the United States (including California) have been diagnosed in returning travelers. Recently in Brazil, increased numbers of fetal deaths and newborns with microcephaly have been noted among mothers who were infected with Zika virus while pregnant. However, additional studies are needed to understand potential embryonic and fetal effects of Zika virus.

Meanwhile, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has issued a travel alert (Level 2-Practice Enhanced Precautions) for people traveling to areas where Zika virus transmission is ongoing.¹ Pregnant women are advised to consider postponing travel to these locations, and all travelers are advised to take strict precautions to avoid mosquito bites (see www.cdc.gov/zika/pregnancy/travel-health-notices.html).

CDC has also issued guidance for Zika testing and fetal microcephaly evaluation in patients who were pregnant while in areas with ongoing Zika transmission (see www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/wr/mm6502e1er.htm).

ACTIONS REQUESTED OF ALL CLINICIANS

- 1. Counsel pregnant women to consider postponing travel to areas where Zika virus transmission is ongoing and counsel all travelers to these areas to use strict precautions to avoid mosquito bites.
- 2. Consider Zika testing per CDC guidance. At this time, asymptomatic individuals will not be tested. Zika testing is indicated for pregnant women who have traveled to an area of Zika transmission and had symptoms of Zika virus, or if there are findings of fetal/newborn microcephaly with a history of maternal travel.
- **3.** Contact SFDPH for assistance if Zika testing is indicated per CDC guidance. Specimens cannot be sent directly to CDC, and testing must be coordinated by the local health department. Contact SFDPH Communicable Disease Control Unit (CDCU) 24/7 by calling (415) 554-2830.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES ON ZIKA VIRUS

CDC: www.cdc.gov/zika

- Q&A for pregnant patients: www.cdc.gov/zika/pregnancy/question-answers.html
- Fact sheets and posters: http://www.cdc.gov/zika/fs-posters

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} \textbf{CDPH:} & www.cdph.ca.gov/HEALTHINFO/DISCOND/Pages/Aedes-albopictus-and-Aedes-aegypti-Mosquitoes.aspx \end{tabular}$

Categories of urgency levels

Health Alert: conveys the highest level of importance; warrants immediate action or attention

Health Advisory: provides important information for a specific incident or situation; may not require immediate action **Health Update**: provides updated information regarding an incident or situation; unlikely to require immediate action

¹ Currently: **Mexico**, **Central America** (El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Panama), **South America** (Brazil, Colombia, French Guiana, Paraguay, Suriname, Venezuela), and the **Caribbean** (Puerto Rico, Haiti, Martinique).